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COSTELLO & MAINS, LLC
By: Deborah L. Mains

18000 Horizon Way, Suite 800
Mt. Laurel, New Jersey 08054
(856) 751-3737

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

JENNA COLBURN and KIMBERLY : UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
GILLEN, individually and on behalf of . DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
themselves and all others similarly :
situated,
Electronically filed
Plaintiff(s),
VS.
Civil Action No.
ADELPHIA THREE CORP.;
PHILY DINER; AND JOHN DOES 1-5 :
AND 6-10, : COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

Defendants.

Plaintiffs Jenna Colburn and Kimberly Gillen (“plaintiffs”), individually and on
behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, by way Complaint against the
defendants, say:

Preliminary Statement

This action is brought by plaintiffs for and on behalf of themselves and other
similarly situated employees (“similarly situated employees”) to remedy violations of the
Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 201, et seq. (“FLSA”).

Plaintiffs seek for themselves and similarly situated employees, declaratory and
injunctive relief, unpaid wages, unpaid minimum wages, liquidated damages, reasonable

attorneys’ fees, and all other appropriate legal and equitable relief pursuant to the FLSA.
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This matter arises as the result of employer’s failure to pay minimum wages to plaintiffs
and other similarly situated.

Jurisdiction and Venue

1. Jurisdiction of the Court is invoked pursuant to 29 U.S.C. Sec. 216(b), 28
U.S.C. Sec. 1331 and 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1332.

2. Because defendant is a resident of the district of New Jersey, venue is
proper within this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1391.

Parties

3. Plaintiff Jenna Colburn resides at 6 Flagstone Drive, Sicklerville, NJ
08081. At all pertinent times herein, Plaintiff Colburn was employed by defendants.

4. Plaintiff Kimberly Gillen resides at 1104 Clements Bridge Road,
Barrington, NJ 08007. At all pertinent times herein, Plaintiff Gillen has been employed
by defendants.

5. Defendant Adelphia Three Corp. (“Adelphia”) is, upon information and
belief, a New Jersey corporation engaged in the restaurant business in New Jersey ,
maintaining a corporate residence and domicile in New Jersey and is an employer within
the meaning of 29 U.S.C. Sec 203.

6. Defendant Phily Diner is, upon information and belief, a New Jersey
business entity engaged in the restaurant business in New Jersey, maintaining a corporate
residence and domicile in New Jersey and is an employer within the meaning of 29

U.S.C. Sec. 203.
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7. Upon information and belief, Adelphia and Phily Diner have had and
continue to have annual gross revenues of not less than $500,000.00 during all relevant
times.

Ta. Upon information and belief, Adelphi and Phily Diner are an enterprise
within the meaning of the FLSA.

8. At all relevant times herein, defendants John Does 1-5 and 6-10, currently
unknown are, in the alternative, individuals on the one hand and other business entities on
the other, who are liable to the plaintiffs as a result of their own acts or on the basis of
respondeat superior.

General Allegations

9. Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees are employed by defendants as
servers at the Phily Diner located at 31 S. Blackhorse Pike, Runnemede, NJ 08078.

10.  Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees are paid less than the minimum
wage and also rely on gratuities for compensation.

11. Defendants employed Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees and has
had substantial control over Plaintiffs’ working conditions and the unlawful policies and
practices alleged herein.

12. Defendants utilize the “tip credit” to pay Plaintiffs and similarly situated
employees less than the minimum wage.

13. However, instead of paying Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees

$2.13 per hour, Defendants pay only $1.94 per hour.
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14, Moreover, there are weeks in which Plaintiffs and similarly situated
employees do not earn sufficient tips to permit utilization of the tip credit, yet Defendants
still pay only $1.94 per hour.

15.  The failure to properly utilize the tip credit has been continuous during the
three years preceding the filing date of this complaint.

16. Defendants’ failure to properly utilize the tip credit and deny Plaintiffs and
similarly situated employees the appropriate minimum wage has been willful.

17. Defendants’ failure to properly utilize the tip credit and deny Plaintiffs
and similarly situated employees the appropriate minimum wage entitles Plaintiffs and
similarly situated employees to an award of liquidated damages.

FLSA Collective Action Averments

18.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege paragraphs 1 through 17 as though fully set
forth herein.

19.  The Fair Labor Standards Act specifically contemplates and permits
collective actions in which putative “class” members are provided notice of the action
and are permitted to opt into the action.

20.  All potential collective action plaintiffs are sufficiently similarly situated,
within the meaning of the FLSA, to permit efficient adjudication of claims as a collective
action.

COUNT |
21.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1

through 20 of the Complaint as if recited at length herein.
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22. Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees have been subjected to an
unlawful and invalid tip credit.

23.  Asaresult, defendants have unlawfully taken advantage of the tip credit
against the minimum wage and have denied the minimum wage to plaintiffs and similarly
situated employees for all hours worked.

24.  Defendants, by the above acts, have violated 29 U.S.C. Sec. 207.

25. Said violations have been willful within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. Sec.
255(a).

26.  Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees have suffered, are now
suffering and will continue to suffer monetary damages as a result of defendants’ acts
unless and until this Court grants the relief requested herein.

27. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court enter a judgment;

@) declaring that the acts and practices complained of herein are in
violation of the FLSA;

(b) declaring that the acts and practices complained of herein are
willful violations within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. Sec. 255(a);

(©) directing defendants to make plaintiffs and similarly situated
employees whole for all unpaid wages due as a consequence of defendants’ violations of
the FLSA, together with interest therefrom from the date(s) such wages were due but

unpaid;
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(d) directing defendants to pay plaintiffs and all similarly situated
employees an additional amount of liquidated damages as provided for in 29 U.S.C. Sec.
216(b);

(e) awarding plaintiffs the costs of this action together with reasonable
attorneys’ fees, as provided in 29 U.S.C. Sec. 216(b); and

M granting such other and further relief as this Court deems necessary
and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

COSTELLO & MAINS, LLC

By: __/s/ Deborah L. Mains
Deborah L. Mains
18000 Horizon Way, Suite 800
Mt. Laurel, New Jersey 08054
856-727-9700
856-727-9797 (fax)

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
Dated: February 14, 2017

DEMAND FOR A TRIAL BY JURY

Plaintiffs, by and through their above-signed counsel, hereby demand, pursuant to
Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, a trial by jury on all Counts in the
above-captioned action.

COSTELLO & MAINS, LLC

By: _ /s/ Deborah L. Mains
Deborah L. Mains
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DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL

Deborah L. Mains, Esquire, of the law firm of Costello & Mains, LLC, is hereby-
designated trial counsel.
COSTELLO & MAINS, P.C.

By: _ /s/ Deborah L. Mains
Deborah L. Mains

DEMAND TO PRESERVE EVIDENCE

1. All defendants are hereby directed and demanded to preserve all physical
and electronic information pertaining in any way to plaintiffs’ employment, to plaintiffs’
cause of action and/or prayers for relief, to any defenses to same, and pertaining to any
party, including, but not limited to, electronic data storage, closed circuit TV footages,
digital images, computer images, cache memory, searchable data, emails, spread sheets,
employment files, memos, text messages and any and all online social or work related
websites, entries on social networking sites (including, but not limited to, Facebook,
twitter, MySpace, etc.), and any other information and/or data and/or things and/or
documents which may be relevant to any claim or defense in this litigation.

2. Failure to do so will result in separate claims for spoliation of evidence
and/or for appropriate adverse inferences.

COSTELLO & MAINS, LLC

By: _ /s/ Deborah L. Mains
Deborah L. Mains
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

District of New Jersey E
JENNA COLBURN AND KIMBERLY GILLEN

Plaintiff’

V. Civil Action No.
ADELPHIA THREE CORP.; PHILY DINER; ET AL.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

Adelphia Three Corp.
31 S. Black Horse Pike
Runnemede, NJ 08078

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summeons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be Sfiled with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if anv)

was received by me on (date)

O [ personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ,or

O I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
» @ person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) . who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ,or
O Ireturned the summons unexecuted because Jor
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

District of New Jersey E

JENNA COLBURN AND KIMBERLY GILLEN

)
Plaintiff )
aintiff )

V. ) Civil Action No.
ADELPHIA THREE CORP_; PHILY DINER; ET AL. )
)
Defendant )

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
Phily Diner

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

31 S. Black Horse Pike
Runnemede, NJ 08078

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintitf an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (I))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 I personally served the summons on the individual at (place

on (date) , or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there

]

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) , Wwho is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ST
O I returned the summons unexecuted because ;or
O Other fspecifi):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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